

## FACILITATOR'S GUIDE





## LANGUAGE DEVELOPMENT FOR ENGLISH LANGUAGE LEARNERS FACILITATOR'S GUIDE

#### Mabel O. Rivera Ani Moughamian David J. Francis Texas Institute for Measurement, Evaluation, and Statistics at the University of Houston



This publication was created for the Center on Instruction (COI) by the Texas Institute for Measurement, Evaluation, and Statistics (TIMES) at the University of Houston. The Center on Instruction is operated by RMC Research Corporation in partnership with the Florida Center for Reading Research at Florida State University; Instructional Research Group; the Texas Institute for Measurement, Evaluation, and Statistics at the University of Houston; and The Meadows Center for Preventing Educational Risk at The University of Texas at Austin.

The contents of this Guide were developed under cooperative agreement S283B050034 with the U.S. Department of Education. However, these contents do not necessarily represent the policy of the Department of Education, and you should not assume endorsement by the Federal Government. Design and editorial assistance provided by RMC Research Corporation.

#### Preferred Citation:

Rivera, M. O., Moughamian, A., & Francis, D. J. (2009). Language development for english language learners. Facilitator's guide. Portsmouth, NH: RMC Research Corporation, Center on Instruction.

The Center on Instruction and the U. S. Department of Education retain sole copyright and ownership of this product. However, the product may be downloaded for free from the Center's website. It may also be reproduced and distributed with two stipulations: (1) the "preferred citation," noted on this page, must be included in all reproductions and (2) no profit may be made in the reproduction and/or distribution of the material. Nominal charges to cover printing, photocopying, or mailing are allowed.

Copyright © 2009 by RMC Research Corporation



## **ACKNOWLEDGMENTS**

The authors express sincere thanks to the individuals listed below who participated in the development and review of this training module. Their input and suggestions were critical to the creation of the *Language Development for English Language Learners* professional development materials.

Maria Carlo, University of Miami School of Education
Elizabeth Goldman, RMC Research Corporation
Nonie Lesaux, Harvard Graduate School of Education
Karen Parker, Texas Institute for Measurement, Evaluation, and Statistics, Center on Instruction
Angela Penfold, Director, Center on Instruction, RMC Research Corporation
Andrea Reade, RMC Research Corporation
Paola Uccelli, Harvard Graduate School of Education



#### **CONTENTS**

#### **2 INTRODUCTION**

#### **3 LOGISTICS**

- 3 Delivery Options
- 3 Preparing to Deliver a Professional Development Program
- 5 Before Delivering the Program

#### 7 ACTIVITIES AND HANDOUT

- 9 Activity 1: Differences among ELL Groups
- 10 Activity 2: Perspectives on Language Development Instruction
- 11 Activity 3: Vocabulary Instruction
- 16 Activity 4: Knowledge of Academic Language
- 18 Handout: Three Approaches to Academic Literacy Instruction for English Language Learners

#### 21 GLOSSARY

- 22 REFERENCES
- **26 TEMPLATES**

#### INTRODUCTION

This Facilitator's Guide has been prepared for presenters of the *Language Development for English Language Learners* professional development module. It accompanies the 67-slide PowerPoint presentation with speaker's notes and contains materials to help prepare for a professional development session, including activity instructions, handouts, agendas, references, and templates for contacting participants.

Intended for audiences of state and district leaders, the *Language Development for English Language Learners* professional development module provides background knowledge on language development, language assessment of English Language Learners, academic language instruction, and vocabulary in grades K through 12.

It is expected that technical assistance providers or states will use the module to train department of education and school district personnel involved in professional development for principals, coaches, and teachers of English Language Learners. Through this professional development, it is hoped that:

Participants will

- collaborate in activities that clarify the meanings of key questions and terms about language development for ELLs; and
- apply the content as they plan to deliver instruction to ELLs.

Facilitators will

• learn about additional resources to adapt, modify, enrich, and further explain content to meet participants' needs.



## LOGISTICS

#### **Delivery Options**

Language Development for English Language Learners is designed as a fourhour session. A sample agenda appears below. Adjust start and end times and breaks as needed before you duplicate the agenda, which should be distributed to participants.

8:00 - 8:30	Registration; Materials Distribution	
8:30 - 9:00	Part 1: Introduction and Demographics	Slides 1 - 19
9:00 – 9:30	Part 2: Language Development	Slides 20 - 32
9:30 – 10:05	Part 3: Assessment	Slides 33 - 39
10:05 – 10:20	Break	
10:20 - 10:45	Part 4: Vocabulary	Slides 40 - 47
10:45 – 11:45	Part 5: Academic Language	Slides 48 - 65
11:45 – 12:00	Evaluation of the professional development	Slide 66

#### Sample Agenda

Other options for using *Language Development for English Language Learners* include:

- Use the materials as a study group tool with other ELL professionals. Move through this Facilitator's Guide using the natural breaks in content at each component for meetings.
- Read the information and complete the activities which extend and reinforce the information as a self study.

#### Preparing to Deliver a Professional Development Program

This program follows the National Staff Development Standards for quality professional development. Strategies are research-based and honor adult learning. Activities provide essential practice and processing time for the concepts covered. Discussion among the participants can facilitate a learning community. The suggested resources provide further background knowledge.

Professional development represents an investment of time and resources. This Guide has been developed to assist you in delivering the greatest return on your participants' investment. *It is important to implement this program as designed to generate its full benefit.* 

Use the handouts and supports to prepare and plan your delivery of this information. All materials are also available on the Center on Instruction website at www.centeroninstruction.org. In planning this professional development, you should model collaboration by identifying individuals with talents to accomplish the tasks listed below.

The tables below can help plan for the necessary assistance, equipment, materials, and other items to present this professional development. As you plan this professional development program, elaborate on or clarify any items as needed to best meet the needs of participants.

#### Tasks

Assistance	Person Responsible	By When	Confirm
<b>Planning Committee</b> for <i>Language</i> <i>Development for English Language</i> <i>Learners</i> professional development			
Facilities			
Lodging			
Meeting Room/s			
Registration			
Online (need technical support?)			
• By mail			
Daily Agenda (personalize for your training)			
Start and end times			
• Breaks			
Meals			



#### Equipment

Equipment	Quantity	Purpose	Availability
Laptop Computer	1	Run the PowerPoint	
Large Screen	1	View the PowerPoint	
LCD Projector	1	Display the PowerPoint	
Lavaliere Microphone	1 per presenter	Adequate sound level	

#### Materials

Materials	Quantity	Availability
Folder or 1" binder	1 per participant	
Name badges	1 per participant	
Chart paper		
Markers		
Varying sizes of sticky notes		
Pencils		
Activity handouts	1 set per participant	Facilitator's Guide pp. 21–23
References	1 set per participant	Facilitator's Guide pp. 25–28

#### Before Delivering the Program

- Familiarize yourself with the organization of the training and adjust it as needed. Remember, processing and practice time are essential components to quality professional development. The reference list at the end of this guide contains readings that are highly recommended for facilitators to review before the training.
- 2. Duplicate the templates.
  - Send a letter of introduction to each registered participant.
  - Copy the daily agenda (with time allocations) for participants.
  - Set up the sign up sheet.
  - Store the evaluations that will be passed out at the end of the day.
  - Sign a Certificate of Completion for each participant.
  - Store the follow-up letters for sending after the training is completed.
- 3. **Secure a convenient location.** The ideal location will have a room large enough to accommodate a group of 24. Placing six participants at each

table, arrange the tables to allow everyone to see the projection screen, conduct table discussions, and use the reading program materials in pairs.

- 4. Download the PowerPoint presentation to your personal computer.
- 5. Print the PowerPoint Presentation Notes. (Use the "Print Notes Page" feature.)
  - The facilitator's script and notes appear below the slides. These notes provide extra information about the key concepts of each slide. This information clarifies the points on each slide. In order for participants to understand the review process thoroughly, it is essential to convey all of the information in the speaker notes. The notes section also contains detailed descriptions of activities and examples.
  - The image of a clock alerts participants to an activity.



- 6. **Duplicate all materials for participants.** Place participant materials either in folders or three-ring binders. Participant materials include:
  - Three- or six-to-a-page print-outs of PowerPoint slides
  - Handouts for activities
  - Glossary of terms
- 7. **Duplicate the evaluation form and have signed certificates available.** Participants should complete this form at the end of the day. The presentation's final slide prompts participants to fill out the evaluation form. At the conclusion of the session, distribute signed certificates of completion.
- 8. **Gather materials and equipment required for the activities.** Place supplies in the center of each table. As participants enter the room, have them sit at the tables in groups of administrators who supervise teachers in the same grade level (i.e., elementary, middle, or high school). This will be helpful when they are asked to participate in activities during the training.
- 9. Set up LCD projector and screen.
- 10. Test all equipment before participants arrive. Ensure computer settings allow for full view of PowerPoint slides.
- 11. Set sound levels for comfortable hearing.

## ACTIVITIES AND HANDOUT

Activity 1: Differences among ELL Groups

Activity 2: Perspectives on Language Development Instruction

> Activity 3: Vocabulary Instruction

Activity 4: Knowledge of Academic Language

Handout: Three Approaches to Academic Literacy Instruction for English Language Learners



## Activity 1: Differences among ELL Groups

#### **Directions:**

Before showing slide 15, prompt participant to name differences within the ELL population.

Ask participants to turn to the person sitting next to them and share what they think are differences among ELL groups.

This activity should take no more than three minutes.

## Activity 2: Perspectives on Language Development Instruction

#### Think/Pair/Share

#### **Directions:**

Spend three minutes individually answering the questions below.

Find a partner and share your responses for three minutes.

As a large group spend four minutes sharing your responses.

(Note: For SEA audiences, only answer questions in column 2. For district level audiences answer questions in both columns 2 and 3.)

Federal Law	State Policy and Support	District Professional Development and Resources
NCLB Title III	What are your SEA's policies on language development instruction?	How does your district provide professional development to teachers on language development instruction?
<ul> <li>Requires teachers to provide ELLs with high quality instruction in language development.</li> </ul>	How does your SEA support districts in improving language development instruction?	What are the key resources your district offers to support language development instruction?
<ul> <li>Calls for schools to develop high levels of English language proficiency among ELLs.</li> </ul>		
• Schools must provide instruction that allows ELLs to acquire content- area knowledge while they are developing proficiency in English.	What more could be done at the state level?	What more could be done by the district?



## Activity 3: Vocabulary Instruction

## State and District Status Charts

#### **Directions:**

Working alone, spend a few minutes filling out the charts, recording how each activity is related to vocabulary instruction for English Language Learners. Then discuss your answers with a partner or in a small group.

Activity	Relationship to Vocabulary Instruction for ELLs
Program Approval	Do your state program approval standards contain any direct requirements for teaching vocabulary to ELLs?
	Do those program approval standards reflect the most current research on vocabulary instruction for ELLs?
	What process is in place for reviewing your program approval standards to ensure that they reflect and require the most current research-based vocabulary instruction for ELLs?
Teacher Certification	Do your state teacher certification standards contain any direct requirements linked to the teaching of vocabulary to ELLs?
	Do those teacher certification standards reflect the most current research on vocabulary instruction for ELLs?
	What process is in place for reviewing your teacher certification standards to ensure that they reflect and require the most current research-based professional learning on vocabulary instruction for ELLs?

#### **STATE LEVEL**

Activity	Relationship to Vocabulary Instruction for ELLs
Teacher Certification Endorsements	Does your state have any current requirements for teacher certification endorsements for teacher professionals already in the field that ensures that they develop a knowledge base in vocabulary instruction for ELLs?
	Do those teacher certification endorsements reflect the most current research on vocabulary instruction for ELLs?
	What process is in place to ensure that the teacher certification endorsements reflect and require the most current research-based professional learning on vocabulary instruction for ELLs?
Teacher Recertification Requirements	Do your state teacher recertification standards contain any direct requirements for teaching vocabulary to ELLs?
	Do those recertification standards reflect the most current research on vocabulary instruction for ELLs?
	What process is in place for reviewing your teacher recertification standards to ensure that they reflect and require the most current research-based professional learning on vocabulary instruction for ELLs?
Administrator Certification	Do your state administrator certification standards contain any direct requirements for teaching vocabulary to ELLs?
	Do those administrator certification standards reflect the most current research on vocabulary instruction for ELLs?
	What process is in place for reviewing your administrator certification standards to ensure that they reflect and require the most current research-based professional learning on vocabulary instruction for ELLs?



Activity	Relationship to Vocabulary Instruction for ELLs
Administrator Certification Endorsements	Does your state have any current requirements for administrator certification endorsements for administrators already in the field that ensure that they develop a knowledge base in vocabulary instruction for ELLs?
	Do those administrator certification endorsements reflect the most current research on vocabulary instruction for ELLs?
	What process is in place to ensure that administrator certification endorsements reflect and require the most current research-based professional learning on vocabulary instruction for ELLs?
Administrator Recertification Requirements	Do your state administrator recertification standards contain any direct requirements for teaching vocabulary to ELLs?
	Do those administrator recertification standards reflect the most current research on vocabulary instruction for ELLs?
	What process is in place for reviewing your administrator recertification standards to ensure that they reflect and require the most current research-based professional learning on vocabulary instruction for ELLs?
State-sponsored Professional Development	Does your state directly sponsor professional development (PD) opportunities related to vocabulary instruction for ELLs?
	Does the PD reflect the most current research on effective vocabulary instruction for ELLs?
	What process is in place to ensure that teachers and administrators have adequate opportunities to participate in research-based professional development in vocabulary instruction for ELLs?

Activity	Relationship to Vocabulary Instruction for ELLs		
State grant money focused on ELL vocabulary instruction	Does your state provide any grant funds to districts or schools for the purpose of improving vocabulary instruction for ELLs?		
	Is the awarding of those grant funds tied to requirements that the funds promote the use of the most current research base in vocabulary instruction for ELLs?		
	What process is in place to assess spending accountability and the impact on student achievement?		



### **DISTRICT LEVEL**

Activity	Relationship to Vocabulary Instruction for ELLs
District Professional Development	Does your district directly sponsor PD opportunities related to vocabulary instruction for ELLs?
	Does the PD reflect the most current research on effective vocabulary instruction for ELLs?
	What process is in place to ensure that teachers and administrators have sufficient opportunities to participate in research-based PD in vocabulary instruction for ELLs?
District Resources to Schools: People	What personnel capacity does your district have to advance ELL student achievement in learning vocabulary?
	What are their roles and responsibilities?
	What other personnel resources could your district use to advance ELL student achievement in learning vocabulary?
District Resources to Schools: Programs	What program resources does your district have to advance ELL student achievement in learning vocabulary?
	What specific instructional tasks do the programs support?
	What other program resources could your district use for this purpose?
District Resources to Schools: Other	What other resources does your district have to advance ELL student achievement in learning vocabulary?
	To what degree are these other resources effective?
	What other resources can you identify that would benefit ELL student achievement in learning vocabulary that your district currently does not have?

### Activity 4: Knowledge of Academic Language

#### True/False Quiz

#### **Directions:**

Take a few minutes to complete the quiz below. During the presentation answers will become evident. Check for your understanding as you listen.

- 1. T F Conversational language becomes natural through practice and experience in a comfortable environment.
- 2. T F Academic language evolves over time with experience and is directly related to the level and quality of instruction one receives.
- 3. T F Mastery of academic language develops in less time than mastery of conversational language.
- 4. T F Mastery of academic language is not considered a determinant of academic success for students.
- 5. T F Conversational language and academic language have different levels of complexity.
- 6. T F Academic language is easier to learn due to its deeply contextualized nature.
- 7. T F Conversational vocabulary and the academic vocabulary found in texts are closely aligned.
- 8. T F Explicit instruction of academic language includes practice recognizing different types of language used in the classroom and outside the classroom.



## Activity 4: Knowledge of Academic Language

#### **True/False Quiz**

#### **Answer Key**

- 1 TRUE. Conversational language—the skills and vocabulary one retrieves and uses every day—becomes natural through practice and experience in a comfortable environment.
- 2 TRUE. Academic language evolves with time and experience and has a direct relationship with the level and quality of instruction one receives.
- 3 FALSE. While ELLs generally develop conversational fluency in English within about two years of exposure to English, academic language fluency can take several years longer (Collier, 1987; Cummins, 1981, 1984; Klesmer, 1994; Hakuta, 2001).
- 4 FALSE. Mastery of academic language is arguably the most important determinant of academic success for individual students (Francis, Rivera, Lesaux, Kieffer, & Rivera, 2006).
- 5 TRUE. Both have different levels of complexity and sophistication; we must be cautious about assuming that conversational language is less sophisticated or cognitively demanding than academic language.
- 6 FALSE. Conversational language, the language of the playground and talking with friends, is deeply contextualized, which makes it easier to understand even in a second language. It is embedded within visual cues and gestures and is generally the first set of language skills ELLs develop in English. Academic language, by contrast, is used by teachers and students to acquire new knowledge and skills. Its specific purposes are cognitively demanding and make it more difficult to comprehend. Academic language also lacks the conversational or interlocutor supports that conversational English provides.
- 7 FALSE. Although many ELLs have well-developed conversational skills, they may lack the specialized language of academic discourse central to school success. They lack the words necessary to read and talk about, as well as to learn, content-area knowledge.
- 8 TRUE. Knowledge of academic language gives students the ability to access information across the content areas. Students need exposure to and explicit instruction in the elements of academic language and they need to understand how classroom language differs from out-of-classroom language, and when to use each.

# Handout: Three Approaches to Academic Literacy Instruction for English Language Learners

Approach	Research Base	Main Elements	Classroom
Cognitive Academic Language Learning Approach (CALLA)	Based on cognitive research: Chamot & O'Malley, 1996	Integrates content-area instruction with explicit instruction in language use and learning strategies Values students' prior knowledge and cultural experiences and relates them to academic learning in a new language and culture Develops language awareness and critical	Hands-on, inquiry-based, and cooperative learning Students evaluate own learning and plan how to become more effective and independent learners
		literacy Develops students' abilities to work successfully with others in social contexts Increases motivation for academic learning and confidence	



Approach	Research Base	Main Elements	Classroom
Collaborative Strategic Reading (CSR)	Effective in culturally and linguistically diverse classrooms of struggling readers, ELLs, students with LD, average, and high-achieving students (Klingner, 1997, Klingner & Vaughn, 1998; Klingner, Vaughn & Schumm, 1998; Chang & Shimizu, 1997) Improves reading comprehension, vocabulary, and test scores (Klinger and Vaughn, 1999) Peer interaction provides opportunities to use academic language in meaningful communication about academic content (Cazden, 1998; Richard- Amato & Snow, 1992) Native language discussions to clarify meaning in English- language texts has been found to increase comprehension, and concepts learned transfer to English once students gain English academic language (Cummins, 1984; Diaz, Moll, & Mehan, 1986; Hakuta, 1990)	Promotes reading comprehension, content learning, and English language acquisition in a cooperative learning context With assistance of teacher and peers, students become increasingly proficient at applying comprehension strategies and constructing knowledge in content-area texts Students have many opportunities to practice their new language skills and use academic language in a directed fashion Teachers note increased student participation in discussion	<ul> <li>Students work in small heterogeneous groups to apply four reading strategies to build comprehension:</li> <li>Preview (activate prior knowledge)</li> <li>Click and chunk (monitor comprehension, use strategies to understand)</li> <li>Get the gist (during reading, restate main idea of paragraph or section)</li> <li>Wrap-up (after reading, summarize new information, generate questions)</li> <li>The teacher initially models behavior for the whole group, verbalizing the thinking behind each strategy as he or she reads a sample passage</li> <li>Teacher acts as facilitator, circulating among groups to assist and monitor progress</li> <li>Student groups have two responsibilities: complete the assigned task and ensure other members of group do, too. Each student has an assigned role (roles rotate): leader, chunk expert, gist expert, announcer, encourager</li> </ul>

Approach	Research Base	Main Elements	Classroom
Sheltered Instruction Model	Based on current knowledge and research-based practices for promoting learning with ELLs (Echevarria, Vogt & Short, 2004) Demonstrated success in improving ELLs' outcomes Uses high-quality strategies to develop ELLs' academic English skills while learning grade-level content Frequently, schools seem to lack a plan for pulling together sound practices (Goldenberg, 2004). The SI Model can enhance instructional coherence by organizing methods and techniques and ensuring that effective practices are implemented and can be quantified	Critical features of high quality instruction for ELLs are embedded in the SI Model's eight components: • Lesson Preparation • Building Background • Comprehensible Input • Strategies • Interaction • Practice/Application • Lesson Delivery, and • Review/Assessment Effective for all grade levels across the content areas Sheltered lesson planning and implementation	



### GLOSSARY

**Academic Language:** The language used in textbooks, in classrooms, and on tests.

**Alphabetic Principle:** The idea that letters and letter patterns represent the sounds of spoken language.

**Language Minority:** The term for a child who is exposed to or uses a language other than English in the home.

**Language Milestones:** Identifiable language skills that can serve as a guide to normal development.

**Limited English Proficient (LEP):** The legal term used by the federal and state government agencies to identify Language Minority students whose limited command of English prevents meaningful participation in classroom instruction. *Not all* Language Minority students struggle with basic command of English skills; typically only those identified as LEP (or ELL) do.

*English Language Learner* is often preferred over Limited English Proficient because it highlights accomplishments rather than deficits. It also includes students who have conversational English skills but lack mastery of academic English.

**Morphology:** The study of the smallest meaningful units of speech (morphemes).

**Phonology:** The patterns of basic speech units and the accepted rules of pronunciation.

**Orthography:** Representing a language by written symbols; the study of letters and their sequences in words; spelling.

**Pragmatics:** The contextually appropriate use of language.

Semantics: The ways in which a language conveys meaning.

**Syntax:** How individual words and basic meaningful units are combined to create sentences.

#### REFERENCES

- Anderson, V., & Roit, M. (1998). Reading as a gateway to language proficiency for language-minority students in the elementary grades. In R. M. and R. T. Jimenez (Eds.), *Promoting learning for culturally and linguistically diverse students: Classroom applications for contemporary research.* New York: Wadsworth.
- August, D., Carlo, M., Dressler, C., & Snow, C. (2005). The critical role of vocabulary development for English language learners. *Learning Disabilities Research & Practice, 20,* 50–57.
- August, D., & Hakuta, K. (1997). *Improving schooling for language minority children: A research agenda.* Washington, DC: National Academies Press.
- Batalova, J., Fix, M., & Murray, J. (2007). Measures of change: The democracy and literacy of adolescent English learners. A report to Carnegie Corporation of New York. Washington, DC: Migration Policy Institute.
- Berk, L. E. (2006). Child Development (7th ed.). Boston, MA: Pearson Education.
- Carlo, M. S., August, D. McLaughlin, B., Snow, C. E., Dressler, C., Lippman, D. N., et al. (2004). Closing the gap: Addressing the vocabulary needs of Englishlanguage learners in bilingual and mainstream classrooms. *Reading Research Quarterly, 39*, 188–215.
- Cazden, C. (1998). *Classroom discourse: The language of teaching and learning.* Portsmouth, NH: Heinemann.
- Chamot, A. U., & O'Malley, J. M. (1996). The Cognitive Academic Language Learning Approach (CALLA): A model for linguistically diverse classrooms. *The Elementary School Journal*, 96(3), 259–273.
- Chang, J., & Shimizu, W. (1997, January). Collaborative strategic reading: Cross-age and cross-cultural applications. Paper presented at the Council for Exceptional Children Symposium on Culturally and Linguistically Diverse Exceptional Learners, New Orleans, LA.
- Collier, V. P. (1987). Age and rate of acquisition of second language for academic purposes. *TESOL Quarterly, 21,* 617–641.
- Cummins, J. (1979). Cognitive/academic language proficiency, linguistic interdependence, the optimum age question and some other matters. Working Papers on Bilingualism, No. 19, 121–129.



- Cummins, J. (1981). The role of primary language development in promoting educational success for language minority students. In California State Department of Education (Ed.), *Schooling and language minority students: A theoretical framework.* Los Angeles, CA: Evaluation, Dissemination and Assessment Center, California State University.
- Cummins, J. (1984). *Bilingualism and special education: Issues in assessment and pedagogy.* Clevedon, England: Multilingual Matters.
- Cummins, J. (1994). The acquisition of English as a second language. In K. Spangenberg-Urbschat & R. Prichard (Eds), *Kids come in all languages: Reading instruction for ESL students* (pp. 36–62). Newark, DE: International Reading Association.
- Diaz, S., Moll, L., & Mehan, H. (1986). Sociocultural resources in instruction: A context-specific approach. In C. E. Cortes & California Office of Bilingual Education (Eds.), *Beyond language: Social and cultural factors in schooling language minority students* (pp. 299–343). (ERIC Document Reproduction Service No. ED 304 241). Los Angeles: Evaluation, Dissemination, and Assessment Center, California State University.
- Dressler, C. (2000). *The word-influencing strategies of bilingual and monolingual fifth graders: A case study approach.* Unpublished qualifying paper. Harvard Graduate School of Education, Cambridge, MA.
- Echevarria, J., Vogt, M., & Short, D. J. (2004). *Making content comprehensible for English learners: The SIOP model.* Boston: Allyn & Bacon.
- Francis, D. J. (2003, October). Identification of learning disabilities in Spanish-speaking English language learners. Paper presented to the OELA/OSERS/NICHD Symposium on Learning Disabilities in English Language Learners. Washington, DC.
- Francis, D. J., & Rivera, M. (2007). Principles underlying English language proficiency tests and academic accountability for ELLs. In J. Abedi (Ed.), *English language proficiency assessment in the nation: Current status and future practice* (pp. 13–31). Davis: University of California School of Education.
- Francis, D. J., Rivera, M., Lesaux, N., Kieffer, M., & Rivera, H. (2006). Practical guidelines for the education of English language learners: Research-based recommendations for instruction and academic interventions. Retrieved from http://www.centeroninstruction.org/files/ELL1-Interventions.pdf January 15, 2009.

- Gersten, R., Baker, S., & Unok Marks, S. (1998). Strategies for teaching Englishlanguage learners. In K. Harris, S. Graham, & D. Deshler (Eds.), *Teaching every child every day: Learning in diverse schools and classrooms* (pp. 208–249). Cambridge, MA: Brookline Books.
- Goldenberg, C. (2004). *Successful school change: Creating settings to improve teaching and learning.* New York: Teachers College Press.
- Grabe, W. (1991). Current developments in second language reading research. *TESOL Quarterly, 25*(3), 375–406.
- Hakuta, K. (1990, Spring). Bilingualism and bilingual education: A research perspective. *NCBE FOCUS: Occasional Papers in Bilingual Education, 1.*
- Hakuta, K. (2001). A critical period for second language acquisition? In D. B. Bailey, J. T. Bruer, F. J., Symons, and J. W. Lichtman (Eds.), *Critical thinking about critical periods.* Baltimore, MD: Paul Brookes.
- Hiebert, E. H., & Kamil, M. (2005). *Teaching and learning vocabulary: Bringing research to practice.* Mahwah, NJ: Lawrence Erlbaum, pp. 243–265.
- Klesmer, H. (1994). Assessment and teacher perceptions of ESL student achievement. *English Quarterly, 26*(3), 5–7.
- Klingner, J. K. (1997, February). *Collaborative strategic reading in culturally and linguistically diverse classrooms that include students with learning disabilities.* Paper presented at the Pacific Coast Research Conference, La Jolla, CA.
- Klingner, J. K., & Vaughn, S. (1998, July-August). Collaborative Strategic Reading (CSR): Involving all students in content area learning. *Teaching Exceptional Children*, 30(6), 32–37.
- Klingner, J. K., Vaughn, S., & Schumm, J. S. (1998). Collaborative strategic reading during social studies in heterogeneous fourth-grade classrooms. *Elementary School Journal*, 99, 3–21.
- Vaughn, S., & Klinger, J. K. (1999). Teaching reading comprehension through collaborative strategic reading. *Intervention in School and Clinic, 34,* 284–292.
- McLaughlin, B. (1987). Reading in a second language: Studies with adult and child learners. In S. R. Goldman & H. T. Trueba (Eds.), *Becoming literate in English as a second language* (pp. 57–70). Norwood, NJ: Ablex.



- McLaughlin, B., August, D. & Snow, C. (2000). Vocabulary knowledge and reading comprehension in English language learners. (Report No. FL 026 932). U.S. Department of Education, Office of Educational Research and Improvement. (ERIC Document reproduction Service No. ED 457 696).
- Nash, J. M. (1997, February 3). Fertile minds. Time, 149(5): 49-56.
- National Clearinghouse for English Language Acquisition (NCELA) and Language Instruction Educational Programs. (2007). *The Growing Numbers of Limited English Proficient Students.* Washington, DC: Author. Retrieved from http://www.ncela.gwu.edu/policy/states/reports/statedata/2005LEP/ GrowingLEP\_0506.pdf.
- No Child Left Behind Act. (2001, December 13). Pub. L. No. 107–110, 115 Stat. 1425.
- Richard-Amato, P. A., & Snow, M. A. (1992). *The multicultural classroom: Readings for content-area teachers.* New York: Longman.
- Scarcella, R. (2003). Academic English: A conceptual framework. UC Linguistic Minority Research Institute Technical Report 2003–1. Retrieved from http://lmri.ucsb.edu January 15, 2009.
- Schleppegrell, M. J. (2004). *The language of schooling: A functional linguistics perspective*. Mahwah, NJ: Lawrence Erlbaum.
- Stahl, S. A., & Nagy, W.E. (2006). *Teaching word meanings*. Mahwah, NJ: Lawrence Erlbaum.
- Snow, C. E. (1983). Literacy and language: Relationships during the preschool years. *Harvard Educational Review, 53,* 165–189.
- Torgesen, J. K., Houston, D. D., Rissman, L. M., Decker, S. M., Roberts, G., Vaughn, S., Wexler, J. Francis, D. J, Rivera, M. O., & Lesaux, N. (2007). Academic literacy instruction for adolescents: A guidance document from the Center on Instruction. Portsmouth, NH: RMC Research Corporation, Center on Instruction.

## **TEMPLATES**

Included here are templates for the introduction, orientation, completion, and evaluation of the *Language Development for English Language Learners* professional development session. They should be adapted to meet the needs of the facilitator and participants.

- Letter of Introduction to Participants
- Sample Daily Agenda
- Sign-in Sheet
- Evaluation
- Certificate of Completion
- Follow-up Letter to Participants



#### Sample Letter of Introduction to Participants

To:

From:

Date:

Welcome. This letter confirms your registration to attend *Language Development for English Language Learners*, a professional development session scheduled for [date to date].

The Language Development for English Language Learners session will be held at [location]. The building is located [give landmarks] which you can easily locate on the map [attach a map]. Enter in the front door [describe] and check in at the registration table located [state where].

At the registration table you will be given a name badge which you should wear while you are in the building. After receiving your badge, you will be directed to [state which room] which is located [give directions]. You will be required to sign in each day. A sign-in sheet will be available in the meeting room. For your information, a draft agenda is attached [attach an agenda]. The sessions will begin promptly at [time and time zone]. Lunch is scheduled for one hour. There will be a fifteen minute break each morning and afternoon.

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions and to preview the *Language Development for English Language Learners* professional development. You may find resources to read before the professional development by visiting www.centeroninstruction.org. I look forward to our time together.

Best wishes,

Enclosures

#### Sample Daily Agenda

#### Day 1

8:00 - 8:30	Registration and Materials Distribution
8:30 – 9:00	Part 1: Introduction and Demographics
9:00 – 9:30	Part 2: Language Development
9:30 – 10:05	Part 3: Assessment
10:05 - 10:20	Break
10:20 - 10:45	Part 4: Vocabulary
10:45 – 11:45	Part 5: Academic Language
11:45 – 12:00	Evaluation



#### Sample Sign-in Sheet

Date:\_\_\_\_\_

Last Name, First Name	Sign In	Sign Out
(Please print)		
1		
2		
3		
4		
5		
6		
7		
8		
9		
10		
11		
12		
13		
14		
15		
16		
17		
18		
19		
20		
21		
22		
23		
24		



#### **Sample Evaluation**

Directions: Read each item below and reflect on your professional development experience. Rate each on a scale of 1 to 5:						
1=Poor	2=Fair 3=Average	4=Above Average	5=Excellent			
	Overall quality of the tra Overall quality of the m	-				
12345	1 2 3 4 5 General organization of the training event					
1 2 3 4 5 Time allotted to cover topics						
1 2 3 4 5	2 3 4 5 Time allotted for discussion and reflection					
12345	The facilitator's qualifica	tions to conduct the sess	sions			
1 2 3 4 5 The facilitator's explanations of slide content						

If you are a technical assistance provider: Has this training prepared you to use the *Language Development for English Language Learners* module with clients?

If you are an educator: Has this training prepared you to use the content of the Language Development for English Language Learners module in your work?

If 'NO,' please explain.

Is there information that was not included that you feel would have been beneficial?

#### **Comments/Suggestions:**



#### Sample Follow-Up Letter of Introduction to Participants

To:

From:

Date:

Thank you so much for participating in *Language Development for English Language Learners* professional development. In our effort to continuously improve, we ask that you please take a few minutes to answer the following questions. You are welcome to send this back by mail or email your responses to [note email address]. Your input will be most helpful in planning areas of emphasis in the future. If I can be of further assistance please don't hesitate to contact me.

1. How has the information you learned in *Language Development for English Language Learners* professional development influenced your decisionmaking about instruction for ELLs?

2. How do you or your organization plan to use the information from the *Language Development for English Language Learners* training in future professional development activities?

Best wishes,

Certificate of Completion	Presented to	B
LANG	Presented	

